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- E& DESCRIPTION
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- DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE
GENERAL DESCRIPTION

 Kemper House is a one-and-one-half story, five-bay detached dwelling of balloon frame

construction on a low brick foundation. The plan is generally rectangular in shape (short
end to street), with two formal rooms on each side of a central hall in front and three
rooms at the rear. (See sketch plan) All exterior siding and decorative elements are of

.wood; siding consists of 1x4 inch boards laid horizontally with 3/4 inch channels between,

: giving the appearance of stone coursing.

Built in 1873, the house is a stylistic hybrid.. Some elements of Second Empire architec-
ture are present, including the use of grouped columns, a symmetrical plan and front ele-
vation, decorative roof dormers and other roof embellishments. Classical Greek influence.
is seen in the pediment over the door and in the denticulation. '

DETAILED DESCRIPTION: EXTERIOR

Front elevation is dominated by a full-width, five-bay porch with grouped columns in
2's and 3's. The central doorway is marked with an exaggerated Greek pediment which projects:
in front of and above the porch. Detailing of column capitals, window frame in pediment
and molding on either side of doorway uses crisp geometric shapes of cut wood. Entablature
contains sawn-wood boards below cornice which are reminiscent of Greek dentils - and a
decorative sawn-wood frieze. Design for cut-work in frieze can be found in an 1873
architect's patternbook, Victorian Architecture by A.J. Bicknell and W.T. Comstock.

The low hip roof with deck is decorated with low, cut-wood cresting around entire perimeter
and deck.. :Other roof decoration is found in symmetrically-arranged chimneys (capped with -
paired terra cotta chimney pots) and symmetrically placed dormer forms. These diminutive
""dormers' are round-arched and decorated with curved cut-wood ornament in the Second Empire
manner, but contain no glass and do not function as windows.

T PR A A . el '
Fenestration is regular with tall-proportioned windows (10 ft.) with double-hung sash; a
single "large pane of glass fills each sash. Window trim consists of wide boards with
chamfered edges and simple incised design framing top and sides, plain sill below and pro-
Jjecting box cornice above. The central entry projects into the porch area approximately
one foot beyond fenestrated wall. This projection contains double doors and their surroun-

"ding woodwork. Each two-panel door is about 7 ft. tall and contains an elongated etched

glass panel over a small, square wood panel. A heavy rope molding forms a common vertical
element between the two doors. Above is a transom light of clear glass, the shape cf which
is reflected in glass door panels and in windows in pediment above. Door trim on each side
carries the same incised design and chamfered edges as window trim; there are ferms pairs
of stylized pilasters, each topped with "capitals" of simple cut-wood circles.

The south side of the building is highlighted with two projecting bays. One bay near

the front of the 'house’ contdins thre€ windows set at obtuse angles; the other just tc: the
rear of the first has four windows forming a rectangular plan. (see sketch plan) Other
windows in the house are found singly with the exception of one pair on the north wall; most
have decorative moldings like those on the front elevation. with the addition of cut-wood -

scroll work on top edge of window cornice. . S : .
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The rear portion of the house has a small back porch next to which a new kitchen has been -
added. The date of the addition was not recorded; siding matches originalj window trim is .
less ornate. :

INTERIOR

The front door opens into a long hall, disclosing a symmetrical room arrangement typical of
Victorian residential architecture with French influence. The center hall is flanked by
parlor and dining room on the south side and music room and library on the north. Each of
these four rooms has a high (12 ft) ceiling with heavily molded cornices and base boards.
Windows rise from floor to ceiling and form a three-sided bay window in the parlor and a
four-window, rectangular bay in the dining room. Doors are 10 ft. tall, containing six
panels; pairs of doors open from entry hall into the two front rooms. These pairs are
surrounded by elaborate shouldered architrave trim of Greek influence. Hardwarei:is brass;
doorknobs have delicate, fan-like design radiating from center point. Ceilings in each
room contain plaster rosettes; lighting fixtures (originally gas) are mounted in each. The
parlor and music rooms have marble mantles; there are no fireplaces in dining room or
library. The four rooms described above were restored and furnished in 1973 (see History
section); none of the furnishings are original. N
Behind these four formal rooms is a five-room curate's apartment. Ceiling height drops to
9 feet to accomodate two rooms in the attic space above. Rooms which serve as curate's
dining and living rooms were probably used as bedrooms and kitchen in the original single-
family dwelling. Opposite the back porch is a dog~leg stair with winders which leads

to bedrooms and a sitting hall in the attic space. These rooms were not a later addition.
The only other room at this level is located at the other end of the attic, over the front
porch; said to have been used as a children's playroom, this small (5x5 ft) room occupies
the space formed by the entryway pediment. A ladder elsewhere in the attic leads to the roof
deck.

To the rear of the dog-leg stair is a large kitchen, added after the house was built. This
room constitutes the only major alteration to the house.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The significance of the Kemper House rests on its unusual and well-preserved architectural
features. The structure is a unique example of High Victorian architecture, utilizing ..
Second Empire and ‘Greek forms as well as detail of an original character. The house is . |
also significant on a local level for its association with Indianapolis citizens - William .
Jillson, a businessman, John Lewis Griffiths, Consul General to Liverpool and London.

ARCHITECTURAL SIGNIFICANCE

Kemper House is a unique example of the excellence of the builder's art in the 1870's.
Although the builder's name is unknown, the house itself offers testimony .to his expertise.
Although small in size, the formal rooms have extremely high ceilings and tall-proportioned
windows and doors, displaying the Victorian love of height. Symmetrical in massing and plan
the structure uses a variety of surface textures and calls upon different styles of the past
for its ornamentation. The house is distinguished by the excellence of craftsmanship found
in wood detail and the skill of the builder in manipulating diverse forms into a unified
whole. The builder's expertise gave the relatively small house a visual jmpact.as  impor-
tant to the streetscape as ‘the impact of the larger mansions which once surrounded it.

Today the house retauns vnrtually every piece of its original detail; its integrity.has ..

. not been compromlsed in any way by the addition at the rear. No house of similar caliber
is. known to exist in the Indianapolis region. Great numbers of the prestigious houses

of Delaware Street have: succumbed to the wrecker's ball.==Kemper House is an |mportant
reminder of the past glory of this area of Indianapolis.

HISTORY

The first owner of the house was a businessman, Charles C. Pierson. He commissioned
construction of the house but sold it only one year after it was built to Annie L.
Clippinger and her daughter and son-in-law, Mary and William M. Jillson. The three moved
into the house in 1875, and remained there for 16 years, until 1891. Jillson was a
locally important businessman, a partner in the plumbing and hardware supply firm, Knight
and Jillson.

The next important owner was John Lewis Griffiths, one of Indiana's most notable orators.
Mr. and Mrs. Griffiths owned the house for 17 years, from 1897 to 1914. Griffiths served
in the Indiana House of Representatives in 1886 and 1887 and ran unsuccessfully for '
Governor in 1892 and 1896. In 1897 the Griffiths moved to 1028 Delaware Street and soon
after, he rose to national prominence. After campaigning for Theodore Roosevelt's :
presidential election, he was offered the .post of Consul General to Liverpool and began his

job there in 1905. Griffiths was notable for developing a new concept .in the operation
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of consul generalships; previously, these posts had been passive positions with few
duties. Griffiths took a more active role, studying such important issues as old-age
pensions, town planning, unemployment pay, profit sharing and health insurance. In 1909
he was promoted to Consul General of London, holding this position until his death in 1912.
Although he spent only seven years (1897-1904) in the house on Delaware Street, his owner-
ship continued until 1914, and many citizens of Indianapolis knew the house as the "'Griffith:
House' for many years.

The house changed hands four times after 1912. |In 1962 it was purchased by the late
E1i Lilly, notable Indianapolis philanthropist, and given to the Episcopal Diocese of
Indianapolis for use as a curate's home and place for small gatherings. During 1962
and 1963 Lilly financed restoration and redecoration of the home, purchasing fine
furnishings of the Victorian period for use in the four front rooms. Lilly dedicated
the house to the memory of the Reverend Jackson Kemper, the first Episcopal Bishop to
serve in Indiana. Bishop Kemper's duties in the state:spanned the fourteen years from

835 to 1849.

In 1977 -the Diocese granted title of the property to the Historic Landmarks Foundation of
Indiana, stipulating that it continue to be called. ''Kemper House' in the Bishop's memory.
The Foundation uses part of the house as their local lnd:anapolls office and maintains the
formal rooms as a museum facnllty.
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